
Community Development 
T (703) 787-7380 
community.development@herndon-va.gov  

777 Lynn Street, Herndon, VA 20170-4602 
herndon-va.gov 

February 20, 2023 

Mr. Douglas Wallace 
Ashley Associates, LLC 
14704 Rabbit Run Ct. 
Centerville, VA 20120 

Re: Zoning Administrator Decision ZAD #22-02 
Wallace Condominium Units 296 A3 and 296 A4 
Fairfax County Tax Map Numbers 0162 02 0296A3 and 0162 02 0296A4 

Dear Mr. Wallace: 

This letter is in response to your request (attachment 1) for a zoning determination relating to the 
above-mentioned property.  Your request is for a determination regarding if the two second floor 
units (unit A3 and A4) are allowed as residential units and if associated on-site parking is required 
for those residential units.   

The subject property was rezoned on November 10, 1998 (ZMA #98-102 and Ordinance 98-O-32, 
attachment 2) from CCD, Central Commercial District (currently known as CC, Central 
Commercial) to PD-MU, Planned Development – Mixed Use (currently known as PD-D, Planned 
Development – Downtown).   

The town council granted a modification as part of Ordinance 98-O-32 that allowed, “…parking 
space requirements to be calculated at a rate of 1.85 spaces per thousand square feet of gross floor 
area of the total building, in consideration of the fact that the structure in existence at the time of 
adoption of this ordinance is a contributing heritage structure, and the referenced parking ratio 
is equivalent to providing 3.3 parking spaces per thousand square feet for the building addition 
shown on the Generalized Development Plan reference in paragraph C.1 above.”   

The GDP, Generalized Development Plan, dated November 5, 1998, is included as attachment 3.  
The GDP shows that the total square footage for the existing structure and the proposed addition 
of Dairy Queen total 5,401 square feet and that 10 parking spaces will be purchased through the 
public shared parking program.  With the modification, 5,401 square feet, at 1.85 spaces per 1,000 
square feet, results in 10 parking spaces required.   

Section 78-100.7(a)(5) of the zoning ordinance stipulates the required computation for public 
shared parking.  Section 78-100.7(a)(5)(b) stipulates that residential development shall be 
computed at a rate of 1.5 per dwelling unit, of which only 0.5 or less may be in the form of public 
shared parking.  Section 28-29-2A-(e) and (f) of the zoning ordinance in effect at the time of the 
rezoning and modification had a requirement of 3.3 spaces per 1,000 gross floor area of both 
residential and nonresidential uses (attachment 4). 

Based on the public records available, I have made the following determinations: 
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• The modification granted through Ordinance 98-O-32 and ZMA #98-102 allowed all
permitted uses in the existing building and proposed addition, totaling 5,401 square feet,
to be met with the purchase of 10 public shared parking spaces.

• Units A3 and A4 are allowed to be used as residential units without the need for on-site
additional parking.

• Any expansion of the gross floor area beyond that shown in the GDP will require additional
parking per Article X of the zoning ordinance.

Pursuant to Section 15.2-2299 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, you have the right to 
appeal this decision to the Town Council of the Town of Herndon, Virginia, within thirty (30) 
days after receipt of this letter. The decision(s) set forth in this letter shall be final and not 
appealable if not appealed within the thirty-day period.  

If you wish to appeal this decision you must do so in the specified time by submitting a written 
request specifying the grounds upon which you are aggrieved to the Zoning Administrator and 
Town Clerk, located in the Community Development Department at 777 Lynn Street Herndon, 
Virginia.  

If you have questions about the application or process, please contact the Zoning 
Administrator’s staff at 777 Lynn Street Herndon, Virginia, or call (703) 787-7380. 

Sincerely, 

David Stromberg, AICP 
Zoning Administrator 

Attachments: 

1. Determination request by Mr. Douglas Wallace and dated December 14, 2022
2. ZMA #98-102 and Ordinance 98-O-32
3. Generalized Development Plan dated November 5, 1998
4. Section 28-29-2A-(e) and (f) of the October 26, 1971 zoning ordinance, as amended
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